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 M E M O R A N D U M 
                                                   EUGENE WATER & ELECTRIC BOARD  

 
 

TO:   Commissioners Brown, Carlson, Mital, Simpson and Helgeson   

FROM: Mark Zinniker, Generation Engineering Supervisor   

DATE: August 23, 2018 

SUBJECT: Urgent Investigations at Carmen Diversion Reservoir   

OBJECTIVE:     Information Only 
 
 
 
Issue 
 
As described in the attached emergency declaration, EWEB has needed to move ahead quickly on 
preparations for investigation work related to the presence of sinkholes on the bottom of Carmen 
Diversion Reservoir.  
 
On July 16 and 17, 2018, a team consisting of EWEB staff, our Part 12D Independent Consultant 
(Schnabel Engineering), and our FERC dam safety compliance engineer inspected the Carmen-Smith 
Project. During that field inspection, the team viewed numerous known sinkholes in Carmen Diversion 
Reservoir, reviewed results from a previous bathymetric survey of the reservoir bottom, and discussed 
potential failure modes associated with the sinkhole situation.  
 
In response to concerns raised from observations and discussions during the week of July 16th, the 
FERC issued a letter on July 25, 2018 requesting that EWEB take immediate action to work with the 
Independent Consultant to develop a work plan for assessing the site conditions, complete site 
investigations, and design of any needed repairs at the Carmen Diversion Reservoir within 45 days of 
receipt of their letter (see attached letter).  
 
Since receipt of the FERC letter, EWEB staff have worked with Schnabel Engineering to negotiate a 
scope and fee to develop and perform the FERC mandated work plan. The fee exceeded the threshold 
for Board approval and waiting until the September 4th Board meeting would not permit EWEB to 
comply with the FERC-mandated response schedule. As a result, EWEB staff requested an emergency 
declaration so that this necessary work could proceed in a timely manner.  
 
EWEB staff also observe that rapid progress on the FERC requested work plan is advantageous with 
respect to the approaching wet weather season which could complicate or preclude certain 
investigation and/or remediation opportunities. 
     
Requested Board Action 
 
Information only, no Board action requested. 
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SOLE SOURCE NUMBER: _______ 
 

FINDINGS TO SUPPORT 
DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 

 
 
DATE:   _8/17/2018_______________ 

 

REQUESTOR:   Cheri Wilson, Generation Engineering  
 

ESTIMATED COST: $169,616  
 
 

In accordance with ORS 279A.065, ORS279A.025, 279B.080, 279B.145, 279C.335(5); 279C.380(4) 
and all applicable EWEB Rules: 

 
The Purchasing Manager, with the concurrence of the General Manager and/or an affected Executive 
Manager, may approve award of a public contract for goods, services, or work as an emergency 
procurement. 

 
“Emergency” means circumstances that: 

(A) Could not have been reasonably foreseen; 
(B) Create a substantial risk of loss, damage or interruption of services or a substantial 
threat to property, public health, welfare or safety; and 
(C) Require prompt execution of a contract to remedy the condition. (See ORS 279A.010((1)(f)) 

 
Such circumstances may also include, but are not limited to: 

(a) EWEB moving forward as quickly as possible to prevent interruption to vital services, 
restoration of vital services, or to 

(b) Prevention of loss to EWEB, 

(c) Protection of the quality of services, or 

(d) Other circumstances necessary to responsibly carry out EWEB’s services to its customers 
 
 

279B.145 Finality of determinations. The determinations under ORS 279B.055 (3) and (7), 279B.060 (3) 
and (10), 279B.075, 279B.080, 279B.085 and 279B.110 (1) are final and conclusive unless they are 
clearly erroneous, arbitrary, capricious or contrary to law. 

 
NATURE OF THE EMERGENCY: 
(Describe the nature of the emergency and what if any effort was made to complete a competitive 
process) 
 
On July 16 and 17, 2018, a team consisting of EWEB staff, our Part 12D Independent Consultant 
(Schnabel Engineering), and our FERC dam safety compliance engineer inspected the Carmen-Smith 
Project. During that field inspection, the team viewed numerous known sinkholes in Carmen Diversion 
Reservoir, reviewed results from a previous bathymetric survey of the reservoir bottom, and discussed  
potential failure modes associated with the sinkhole situation. In response to concerns raised during 
those discussions, the FERC issued a letter on July 25, 2018 requesting that EWEB take immediate action 
to work with the Independent Consultant to develop a work plan for assessing the site conditions, 
complete site investigations, and design of any needed repairs at the Carmen Diversion Reservoir within 
45 days of receipt of their letter (see attached letter). Since receipt of the FERC letter, EWEB staff have 
worked with Schnabel Engineering to negotiate a scope and fee to develop and perform the FERC 
mandated work plan. Since the fee exceeds the threshold for Board approval and waiting until the 
September 4th Board meeting will not permit EWEB to comply with the FERC-mandated response 
schedule, EWEB staff request an emergency declaration so that this necessary work can proceed in a 
timely manner. EWEB staff also observe that rapid progress on the FERC requested work plan is 
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advantageous with respect to the approaching wet weather season which could complicate or preclude 
certain investigation and/or remediation activities. 
 
 
APPROVALS 
 

Department Supervisor:  Date:    

Purchasing Manager:  Date:     

ET Manager:   Date:    

General Manager:   Date:    
 
 
 
 
 
PURCHASE CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
 
Vendor/Contractor:  Schnabel Engineering, Inc    

Buyer Name:   P.O. Number:    
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